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Addendum No. 2 

Response to Question and Requests for Clarification, Interpretation, and 

Additional Information 

For: 

Request for Proposals #2025-03 

Transit Operations 

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority 

Notice to Prospective Proposers 
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority’s (ECCTA) response to questions and requests for 

clarification, interpretation, and additional information, as set forth in the Information to 

Proposers section of the RFP, page 8, “Interpretation of Contract Documents,” is attached and 

hereby incorporated into, and made part of, the RFP solicitation for handling of the operation of 

its mobility services (including fixed route, paratransit, microtransit, and non-emergency medical 

transportation). 

Office of the CEO 

November 6, 2025 
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Additional Information and Clarifications 

Contractor union negotiations are still in progress at the time of this addendum. To prevent disparities in 

pricing due to key unknown variables, ECCTA requests that proposers assume an annual 4% wage 

increase over the next four years for all employees currently represented by the Teamsters. 

Pursuant to the Interim Final Rule for the FTA’s DBE Program, which took effect on October 3, 2025, the 

requirements of certain provisions are being temporarily waived until the California Unified Certification 

Program (CUCP) has completed its required review of certified DBES, pursuant to 49 CFR part 26.111. 

This includes the completion of the DBE forms found in Section 10 of the RFP. Once the CUCP review is 

complete, DBE reporting provisions will either be reinstated or added to the contract. No additional 

payment will be made to produce these reports necessary to ensure the contractor's compliance with the 

ECCTA DBE Program. A red-lined version of the impacted provisions is included with this addendum. 

Proposers are advised that compliance with the California Consumer Privacy Act will be required and 

will be included in the final executed contract. The applicable portion of the sample contract included in 

the RFP has therefore been revised and included with this addendum for reference. 

Due to the nature of the file format or file contents, some of the information requested by proposers 

is not included as part of this addendum. Instead, they will be made electronically available on our 

website and on Bid Express as separate documents. As one of these files is a revised Price Proposal 

Form in Excel, ECCTA advises proposers that acknowledgment of this addendum in their proposal 

submissions will be required for their proposal to be considered responsive. 
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Questions and Answers 

1. Can ECCTA please clarify if the required performance bond amount is $1M as indicated on 

page 18 of the RFP, or 100% of the contract sum, as indicated on page 113? 

A: The performance bond should be for $1M as indicated on page 18 of the RFP. 

2. Q: Can ECCTA please confirm that the faithful performance bond on page 113 of the RFP is 

provided for reference and does not need to be submitted with bidders’ RFP responses? 

A: The Faithful Performance Bond on page 113 of the RFP can be disregarded. This addendum 

contains a revised bond form that proposers will need to submit with their proposal. 

3. Q: Can ECCTA please allow the use of verified e-signatures on the proposal forms and letter of 

introduction? 

A: Yes. 

4. Q: Can ECCTA please provide a roster and org chart of drivers, dispatchers, and all other 

contractor employees? 

A: ECCTA does not have access to this information. 

5. Q: Can ECCTA please provide updated data on average data per mode? 

A: ECCTA does not know what updated data per mode is being asked for. More specific data has 

been provided in response to other questions which may satisfy this question. 

6. Q: Does ECCTA provide fuel? 

A: Yes. ECCTA provides fuel for all of its vehicles, including its battery electric buses. 

7. Q: Can ECCTA confirm when the current contract expires? 

A: The current contract expires on June 30, 2026. 

8. Q: Is ECCTA required to issue an RFP for transit services at the expiration of the term? 

A: Yes. 

9. Q: Would ECCTA be open to using a non-dedicated supplemental service for additional cost 

savings? 

A: ECCTA is open to exploring innovative service models that can enhance efficiency and reduce 

costs, provided they maintain service quality, reliability, and compliance with ECCTA’s operational 

and safety standards. Any proposal involving non-dedicated supplemental service should clearly 

demonstrate how service levels and performance requirements will be met or exceeded. 
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10. Q: Can ECCTA provide performance data on their paratransit services for the previous 12 

months? Please include, for both ambulatory and non-ambulatory trips, on-time performance, 

average trip duration, average trip mileage, and vehicle revenue hour costs. 

A: This information is included with this addendum. 

11. Q: Are there any costs for API integration into ECCTA’s dispatching software and ongoing 

maintenance? Who will be responsible for the integration and maintenance costs? 

A: ECCTA will provide access to its dispatching software API at no additional cost. However, 

contractors will be responsible for any costs associated with integrating their systems and for the 

ongoing maintenance of those integrations. 

12. Q: What are ECCTA’s biggest pain points with the current service? What are you hoping to 

improve upon in the next contract? 

A: ECCTA continually seeks to enhance the quality, efficiency, and reliability of its services. While 

the current service has met many operational goals, there are areas where improvement is desired. 

ECCTA is focused on opportunities to strengthen service consistency, optimize fleet utilization, and 

further improve customer experience and communication. 

The next contract is intended to build upon the existing foundation by encouraging innovation, data-

driven performance management, and operational flexibility—all while maintaining cost-

effectiveness and compliance with ECCTA’s service standards. 

13. Q: Is there an opportunity to ask clarifying follow-up questions after ECCTA responds to 

vendors’ questions? 

A: No. 

14. Q: Can ECCTA make the prices and terms under this Agreement available to any other 

governmental entity, should any such governmental entity desire to purchase under the terms 

and conditions of this Agreement? 

A: No. 

15. What is the maximum and median number of trips per hour performed and requested in a 

given day by day of week? What is the maximum and medium number of trips performed and 

requested in a given day by day of week? 

A: See question 10. 

16. Can ECCTA please provide the following data in Excel for a recent seven-day period for both 

the microtransit and paratransit modes: 

a. Origin and destination latitude and longitude coordinates for each trip, both scheduled and 

denied. 

b. Final status of each trip (e.g., whether the trip was provided, cancelled, no-showed or 

denied). 
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c. Trip booking time, scheduled and actual pick-up and drop-off times for each performed 

and no-showed trip. 

d. Passengers transported, broken down by riders, attendants, companions, children and any 

other passenger categories tracked by the system. 

e. Number of trips denied, broken down by capacity, eligibility, and ride refusals as well as by 

any other category currently tracked. 

f. Numbers of complaints received. 

g. Customer ratings of the trip. 

h. “Client ID,” “Driver ID,” “VehID,” “VehType.” 

A: ECCTA has provided this information on its website and on Bid Express in response to this 

question. 

17. Please provide garage deadhead and distance calculations by route. 

A: This information is included with this addendum. 

18. Please provide the current driver’s bid sheets for the fixed route, showing all bid and open runs, 

and the total hours for each operator per week. 

A: This information is included with this addendum. 

19. Are the blocks subject to manipulation? For example, would ECCTA permit interline 

deadheading in order to possibly reduce the peak vehicle requirement? 

A: At this time, the existing blocks are not subject to modification. Any adjustments—including 

interline deadheading or other changes intended to reduce peak vehicle requirements—would require 

prior review and approval from ECCTA. 

We certainly welcome feedback and suggestions for future consideration; however, no changes 

should be implemented without ECCTA’s authorization. The only exception to this would be in cases 

involving an approved Operator medical accommodation. 

20. Can ECCTA provide a telephone system report for a fairly representative week for the call 

center, excluding holidays or other events which may have impacted service levels, that 

includes: 

a) Inbound and outbound calls by time of day 

b) Total inbound calls abandoned by time of day 

c) Average time to answer by time of day 

d) Longest wait time 

e) Average call length 

f) Agents logged in by time of day 

g) Average agent availability 

A: ECCTA has provided the above information by way of two reports – the Agent Call Volume 

report (see question 68) and Queued Call Volume. The Queued Call Volume covers the date range of 
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Sunday, October 19 through October 25. ECCTA does not have access to custom reports that would 

allow for all the requested information to appear on a single, summarized report. 

21. Who certifies riders for the paratransit services? If this is a responsibility of ECCTA or a third-

party firm, please describe the process for coordinating this data with the contractor. If this is 

the responsibility of the contractor under this agreement, please describe the responsibilities 

involved with this item. 

A: Rider eligibility certification for paratransit services is managed by ECCTA. ECCTA oversees the 

eligibility determination process in accordance with ADA requirements and maintains the official 

database of certified riders.  An automated process has been established to perform a nightly data 

upload from the Regional Eligibility Database (RED) to Trapeze. 

The contractor will receive regular updates from ECCTA to ensure accurate scheduling, dispatching, 

and service delivery. Coordination of rider data will follow established data exchange protocols to 

protect confidentiality and ensure timely access to current eligibility information. 

22. How many vehicles will be made available to the incoming contractor to perform training 

during the start-up period? 

A: ECCTA will make a limited number of vehicles available to the incoming contractor for training 

purposes during the start-up period. The exact number and availability of vehicles will be coordinated 

based on the implementation schedule and operational needs to ensure a smooth transition without 

disrupting existing service. 

23. Please provide a copy of the current contract for each contractor for these services. 

A: A copy is included with this addendum. 

24. Does ECCTA approve the use of its logo in the proposal response? 

A: Yes, so long as it is not altered in any way. 

25. Please confirm that corporations are not required to submit the Power of Attorney form. 

A: Corporations are required to submit a Power of Attorney form, or a corporate board resolution 

authorizing the individual signing the proposal. See question 131. 

26. Please confirm that proposers may mark the Cargo Preference form ‘Not Applicable.’ 

A: No, proposers cannot mark the form ‘Not Applicable.’ 

27. Please confirm that the performance bond is $1,000,000 and that no bid bond is required with 

the proposal. 

A: See question 1. No bid bond is required. 
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28. Please confirm that ECCTA will accept the proposer’s surety’s annually renewable 

performance bond form. 

A: ECCTA will accept an annually renewing performance bond (e.g. a continuous bond) so long as 

there is no chance there is a gap in any relevant expiration dates. 

29. Please confirm that proposers may provide the redacted copy of the proposal in electronic 

format on a USB for the hard copy submission. 

A: Confirmed. 

30. Will ECCTA accept electronic signatures? 

A: See question 3. 

31. Please confirm all tables, charts, graphics, etc., are not subject to the 12-point font requirement. 

A: Confirmed. 

32. Please confirm that proposers may submit their proposals only electronically through Bid 

Express. 

A: Proposers are to submit their proposal electronically through Bid Express, and submit a hard copy 

and redacted electronic copy, if applicable, to ECCTA’s main office. ECCTA must therefore receive 

at least two, but up to four, versions of the proposer’s proposal to be responsive: 

1. Electronic copy, unredacted, on Bid Express 

2. Hard copy, unredacted, at ECCTA’s main facility 

3. If applicable, electronic copy, redacted, at ECCTA’s main facility. 

4. Optional: if applicable, electronic copy, redacted, on Bid Express. 

 

33. Please confirm who is responsible for providing the call center software platform. If ECCTA 

provides it, kindly confirm the name of the platform currently in use. 

A: ECCTA provides the call center software platform. The platform currently in use is Xima 

Chronicall, in conjunction with an Avaya IP Office phone system. 

34. During the term of this contract, does ECCTA plan to replace any existing software platforms 

used for fixed route, paratransit, microtransit or NEMT services? If so, which platforms and 

would ECCTA be open to recommendations from the contractor? 

A: At this time, ECCTA does not have definitive plans to replace any of its existing software 

platforms used for fixed route, paratransit, microtransit, or NEMT services during the term of this 

contract. However, ECCTA continuously evaluates its technology solutions to enhance efficiency, 

integration, and customer experience. 
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ECCTA is open to considering recommendations from the contractor that could improve system 

performance or operational effectiveness, provided any proposed changes align with ECCTA’s 

strategic goals, data security standards, and budget considerations. 

35. Are there any passenger-facing applications currently deployed by ECCTA? 

A: Several including, but not necessarily limited to, Elerts Tri Delta Watch, Transit, Tri MyRide, 

Easybook, Clover. 

36. What issues, if any, has ECCTA experienced with the Trapeze scheduling, reservations and 

dispatch software/platform? Additionally, what issues, if any, has ECCTA experienced with the 

Connexionz CAD/AVL software platform? 

A: Overall, ECCTA’s experience with both the Trapeze scheduling, reservations, and dispatch 

platform and the Connexionz CAD/AVL system has been positive. Both platforms have supported 

ECCTA’s operational and reporting needs effectively. 

As with any complex software systems, occasional challenges have occurred related to data 

integration, system updates, and user interface performance. ECCTA works closely with each vendor 

to address these issues promptly and to implement improvements that enhance reliability, 

functionality, and ease of use. 

ECCTA remains open to exploring process or technology enhancements that may improve 

interoperability, data accuracy, and overall service efficiency. 

37. Which Trapeze modules does ECCTA currently use with version 21, and is Trapeze hosted in 

the cloud or on-premises? 

A: ECCTA uses Trapeze Pass for scheduling and dispatching.  Trapeze is hosted on premise. 

38. Please confirm whether the contractor is required to provide the dash camera and driver 

monitoring system for the contractor-provided vehicles only, or for both contractor-provided 

and ECCTA-provided vehicles. 

A: Contractor is required to equip all revenue vehicles, as well as any non-revenue vehicles operated 

by contractor employees, with dash cameras and driver monitoring systems. 

39. Please confirm that the contractor is not responsible for any costs associated with the provision 

of the TripSpark DriverMate application currently used by ECCTA for the contractor-

provided paratransit and NEMT vehicles. 

A: ECCTA is responsible for all costs associated with the Trapeze/TripSpark software. The contractor 

is responsible for equipping paratransit and NEMT (MedVan) vehicles with tablets to support the use 

of the DriverMate application.  Additionally, contractor is responsible for the cost of cellular data 

plans for these tablets. 
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40. For the 30 paratransit vehicles and 6 NEMT vehicles to be supplied by the contractor, please 

confirm whether tablets are the only in-vehicle technology required. If additional equipment is 

needed, provide a list of all required in-vehicle technology along with any specifications 

required by ECCTA. 

A:  In addition to the tablets and associated data plans, contractor is also required to equip the 

vehicles with dash cameras and driver monitoring system. 

41. Is there a resiliency solution in place to fuel the battery electric vehicles if the grid goes down? 

A: ECCTA’s battery electric vehicles are primarily charged via the electric grid. While there is no 

dedicated resiliency solution for extended grid outages, the fleet has been intentionally designed with 

a high spare ratio to account for the current reliability limitations of electric buses and to ensure 

continuity of service. Contractors should still include contingency plans to manage vehicle 

availability in the event of unforeseen power disruptions. 

42. Except for replacements due to damage or neglect by the contractor, please confirm that the 

contractor is not responsible for costs related to the repair, maintenance, support, or 

replacement of any vehicle-related capital equipment listed on page 64. 

A: That is correct. 

43. If the contractor is responsible for any costs associated with the equipment listed on page 64, 

please: 

a. Clarify the specific responsibilities. 

b. Provide the annual costs incurred by the contractor for the past three years. 

c. Share the make, model, and age of all equipment for which the contractor bears 

responsibility. 

A: N/A 

44. Is ECCTA responsible for the power associated to fueling the battery electric vehicles? 

A: Yes 

45. Will ECCTA or the contractor be responsible for providing fuel for revenue and non-revenue 

battery electric vehicles? If an ECCTA responsibility, where will the fuel be obtained? 

A: ECCTA is responsible for providing gasoline, diesel, and electricity to charge all revenue and non-

revenue vehicles. Fueling and charging will occur at 801 Wilbur Ave. 

46. Please provide details on existing chargers, including OEM, type of charger (AC/DC), and rated 

power (kW). Does ECCTA have future plans for additional chargers? 

A: ECCTA currently maintains two 125kW Proterra chargers, two 48kW Tritium chargers, and two 

80kW BYD chargers. Replacement of the Proterra and Tritium chargers is currently underway. 
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47. Does ECCTA have a Charge Management Software (CMS)? If so, please provide the CMS 

provider. 

A: The current CMS is called Omega through BP Pulse. 

48. Please provide ECCTA’s Zero-Emissions transition plan. 

A: ECCTA’s Zero-Emission Bus Rollout Plan is included as part of this addendum. 

49. How many additional battery electric buses does ECCTA plan on purchasing within this 

contract term? 

A: See question 48. 

50. Has ECCTA decided on OEM(s), models, battery capacity (kW) and number of battery packs? 

A: Not at this time. Vehicle specifications will be finalized closer to the scheduled purchase date. 

51. Please provide existing warranty information on ECCTA’s current Zero-Emission Vehicles. 

A: N/A 

52. Will ECCTA or the contractor be responsible for providing fuel for non-electric vehicles? If an 

ECCTA responsibility, where will the fuel be obtained? 

A: See question 6. 

53. Are vehicles excluded from the full-replacement cost coverage requirement of the All Risk 

Property insurance? If vehicles are included, would ECCTA consider replacing the full-

replacement language with fair market value language? If ECCTA will not change the 

language, please provide proposers with the current value of each vehicle so they can price for 

proper coverage. 

A: Yes, vehicles are excluded from the full-replacement cost coverage of the All Risk Property 

insurance. 

54. Do ECCTA employee vehicles need to be insured as part of this contract? Will ECCTA insure 

these vehicles or is this the contractor’s responsibility? 

A: ECCTA employee vehicles will need to be insured as part of this contract. 

55. Is the county or of the contractor responsible for the management, testing/sampling 

requirements of the Stormwater Prevention Plan and Spill Prevention Control 

Countermeasures? 

A: It will be ECCTA’s responsibility. 

56. Please confirm whether the contractor will be reimbursed gate-to-gate for driver relief time. 

A: Driver relief time will not be billable. 
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57. Please confirm if lunch penalties are being paid to hourly employees. 

A: ECCTA is not responsible for lunch penalties associated with contractor employees. 

58. Please provide the current organizational chart or listing of positions that the current 

contractor is providing for this contract. Please indicate the percentage that these positions are 

dedicated to this contract. 

A: See question 4. 

59. Please provide the current benefit plans for non-union employees. 

A: This information is included with this addendum. 

60. To allow proposers to be in compliance with Labor Code section 1070 and 1072, please provide 

the following information: 

A. Seniority list for the current employees for this contract with position, full-time or part-time 

status, length of service, and current rate of pay. 

B. Current rates/beneftis of the current employees with specific information regarding co-

pays, dependent coverage and amount of premium paid by employer. 

C. Information regarding retirement plans. 

D. Any applicable collective bargaining agreements for employees of these services and any 

applicable MOUs or side letters of agreement. 

A: That information is included with this addendum. 

61. For paratransit, microtransit and NEMT work, the RFP indicates that the contractor will not 

be paid for any non-productive breaks exceeding 30 minutes. Can ECCTA provide a 24-month 

history of these hours deducted from the billable vehicle service hours for these services? 

A: This provision is intended to encourage contractors to minimize unproductive or slack time. As 

this is a new requirement for this contract, no historical data on associated deductions exists. 

62. Can ECCTA provide one month trip data, 24 months of vehicle service hours, and vehicle 

service miles data and daily route information for paratransit, microtransit, and NEMT 

services? 

A: See question 10. 

63. Can ECCTA please provide the anticipated annual vehicle service hours for all option years? 

A: For planning purposes, contractors should assume that service levels will remain unchanged 

during the option years. 

64. Can ECCTA provide an Excel version of the required Pricing Forms? 

A: An Excel version will be available on Bid Express and on our website. 
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65. Please provide a 24-month historical report of all incentives and damages assed by category 

against the current contractor. 

A: See question 120. 

66. Please provide a 24-month history of fares collected by the incumbent contractor broken down 

by coins and bills. 

A: ECCTA has provided this information on its website and on Bid Express in response to this 

question. 

67. Please confirm that ECCTA will provide the required phone system and if that system already 

has IVR functionality. 

A: Confirmed. 

68. Please provide one month of call data, showing call volumes by hour and day. 

A: ECCTA has provided a 189-page Agent Call Volume report on its website and on Bid Express in 

response to this question. The report shows the call volume of each agent, broken down by hour and 

day through the month of September 2025. 

69. Please provide the amount of translation costs incurred by the incumbent contractor over the 

last 24 months. 

A: The total amount of translation costs incurred by the incumbent contractor over a 24 month period, 

from October 2023 to September 2025, was $18,646.40. 

70. Would ECCTA consider a two-week extension to the proposal due date? 

A: No. 

71. Would ECCTA consider revising the required insurance limits for general and vehicle liability 

to $10 million? 

A: No. 

72. Will ECCTA consider revising the Section 13(c) Agreement such that the new contractor is not 

bound by ECCTA’s 13(c) agreement and will not assume liability for any 13(c) claims? 

Additionally, will it consider adding a provision to the contract that provides that ECCTA will 

be administratively and financially responsible for 13(c) obligations? 

A: No. 

73. Will ECCTA delete the indemnification language from the 13(c) requirements and clearly 

acknowledge and agree that the contractor is not a party to, and not bound by the terms of, any 

of ECCTA’s 13(c) agreement(s) or any existing CBAs? 

A: No. 
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74. Will ECCTA revise its termination language to provide for 60 days’ notice of termination and 

payment of the contractor’s close-out costs? 

A: No. 

75. Will ECCTA consider revising the contract to require mutual agreement for any extension of 

the term of the agreement? 

A: ECCTA will consider it. 

76. Will ECCTA consider adding a provision to make it clear that the contractor is not responsible 

for any facility repairs or environmental issues or releases of hazardous materials existing on or 

prior to the contractor’s occupancy of ECCTA’s facilities, or caused by any party other than 

the contractor? 

A: A new contractor who is not the incumbent contractor will not be responsible for any facility 

repairs or environmental issues or releases of hazardous materials existing on, or prior to, the new 

contractor’s occupancy. If the new contractor desires such a provision in the final contract language, 

they are to include their desired language in the Exceptions/Objections section of their proposal. 

77. Will ECCTA include the contractor’s vehicle acceptance standards as the applicable standard 

against which all vehicles will be inspected, and include the contractor’s vehicle acceptance 

agreement as an exhibit to the Agreement? Please include that ECCTA will be responsible for 

the cost of major repairs needed during the first 180 days after the contractor begins service 

under the Agreement. 

A: ECCTA will reference the contractor’s vehicle acceptance standards as the benchmark for vehicle 

inspections and will include the contractor’s vehicle acceptance agreement as an exhibit to the 

Agreement. In the event a new contractor is selected, ECCTA will be responsible for the cost of any 

major repairs, excluding those resulting from an accident, required during the first 180 days of service 

under the Agreement. 

78. Will ECCTA include a provision that provides for price adjustments if the contractor’s costs 

increase or revenues decrease as a result of: 

i. Changes to the scope of work/service hours requested by ECCTA; 

ii. Changes in laws, rules, regulations, etc., applicable to the services to be provided by the 

contractor; 

iii. Wage increases necessary for the contractor to be able to recruit and retain qualified 

employees as a result of an increase in the minimum wage in the city or surrounding 

jurisdictions; and 

iv. Costs incurred in response to a federal, state, or local state of emergency (including the 

COVID-19 pandemic or similar national emergency), including providing personal 

protective equipment, supplies, staffing, and additional services (including additional health 

and safety serviuces or requirements). 
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Additionally, would ECCTA consider adding a provision that if the parties cannot agree on a 

rate adjustment, then either party may termination the contract upon 120 days’ written notice 

to the other party? 

A: No. 

79. Are there any existing exterior Wi-Fi access points for the bus parking lot/yard? 

A: Not currently but it’s something that is being explored. 

80. Are interior walls cinder block or stud/sheetrock? Additionally, does the facility have Cat6 

wiring throughout? 

A: The interior walls are constructed of sheetrock, and the facility is currently wired with Cat5 

cabling. 

81. Are there any pain points with the current Wi-Fi? If so, please indicate where they are on a 

floor plan. 

A: No. 

82. What is the current bandwidth to the facility? Is there a backup circuit? Who are the ISPs? 

A: ECCTA currently maintains a 500 Mb/s (up/down) connection through AT&T. No backup circuit 

is currently available. 

83. Please provide marked up floor plan with IT Comm closets shown on a floor plan. Additionally, 

please provide pictures of IT closets to determine if there is enough space to co-locate 

equipment. 

A: Co-locating equipment in the IT closets is not an option at this time. Contractors should plan 

proposals assuming that all equipment must be housed independently from existing IT infrastructure. 

84. If the contractor cannot install its network equipment, would ECCTA IT provide a VLAN for 

the contractor to use? 

A: ECCTA will provide physical network connectivity. A VLAN will be implemented in the near 

future. 

85. Can the contractor co-locate network equipment in existing IT closets, or would the contractor 

need to use separate areas? 

A: See question 83. 

86. Please provide the microtransit zone boundary in shapefile or GeoJSON format. 

A: ECCTA has provided this information on its website and on Bid Express in response to this 

question. 
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87. Will ECCTA confirm that no printed hard copy is required. If a hard copy is required, will the 

agency allow proposers to submit electronic copy by the deadline, then follow up with the 

printed hard copy afterwards? 

A: See question 32. 

88. Would ECCTA consider allowing the use of a crime policy rather than a fidelity bond? 

A: Yes. A crime policy may be offered in lieu of a fidelity bond. 

89. Would ECCTA consider limiting indemnification to those liabilities arising out of the 

contractor’s negligence or willful misconduct in the performance of the work? 

A: No. 

90. Would ECCTA allow for no less than 30 days’ written notice prior to terminating for 

convenience? 

A: No. 

91. Would ECCTA permit the use of an annual bond form be used and provided by the surety, or 

otherwise modifying the existing form to permit an annual term and the $1 million bond 

amount? 

A: See question 28. 

92. Would ECCTA kindly remove the requirement that ECCTA have the right to drive any vehicle 

and that the contractor provide proof of insurance for said vehicle, as it would be contrary to 

public policy? 

A: No. 

93. Would ECCTA provide that the 10 business day cure period be non-discretionary? 

A: No. 

94. Would ECCTA provide the contractor be entitled to reimbursement of reasonable close-out 

costs that it incurs as a result of termination for convenience? 

A: No. 

95. Would ECCTA provide that changes to the contract documents, particularly those changes to 

the scope that result in an increase or decrease in revenue greater than 10% of the proposer 

service levels will entitle the contractor to an equitable adjustment in schedule and 

compensation? 

A: Please see page 45-46 of RFP. 
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96. Would ECCTA provide that changes to the contract documents, particularly those changes to 

the scope that result in an increase of decrease in revenue greater than 20% of the proposed 

service levels would require the mutual consent of the contractor? 

A: Please see page 45-46 of RFP. 

97. Would ECCTA provide that the contractor be permitted to maintain any deductible level they 

so choose? 

A: See page 32 of the RFP. ECCTA reserves the right to require the contractor to purchase coverage 

with a lower deductible, and the contractor’s deductible must be declared to and approved by 

ECCTA. 

98. Would ECCTA allow for the contractor to provide the required notice of cancellation rather 

than the insurance carrier? 

A: No. 

99. Would ECCTA remove the requirement that the general liability policy cover personal 

injuries? Personal injury typically relates to items such as false arrest or imprisonment, libel 

and slander, wrongful eviction, etc. The standard ISO general liability policy excludes 

contractually assuming this type of liability except for liability the insured would still have in 

the absence of a contract. 

A: No. 

100. Does ECCTA provide a pre/post inspection software for the drivers to use for the 

inspections? 

A: ECCTA will provide Zonar equipment and software for pre/post trip inspections. 

101. Can ECCTA provide vehicle accident and injury statistics experienced by the current 

contractor for the past 24 months? 

A: See question 117. 

102. Can ECCTA please disclose the last five years of loss history for Workers’ Compensation 

and Auto Liability, including the number and type of incidents, financials including paid to date 

and reserves by year, so that proposers can correctly price insurance coverages? 

A: ECCTA does not have access to this information. 

103. Can ECCTA please provide the insurance value of all assets the contractor is required to 

insure (e.g. buses, other vehicles, facility, parts/equipment) and the required valuation to be 

insured (e.g. actual cash value, book value, replacement cost)? 

A: This information has been included with this addendum. 
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104. Can ECCTA also provide the vehicles used for NEMT, or which vehicles are used for 

NEMT? 

A: ECCTA will provide vehicles (Dodge minivans) for the NEMT service. 

105. Would ECCTA consider extending the proposal due date to give proposers time to review 

the Q&A and submit a more comprehensive proposal? 

A: No. 

106. Can ECCTA provide the last 12 months of historical invoices? 

A: This information is included with this addendum. 

107. Can ECCTA provide 3 years of historical service statistics data by route, including revenue 

hours, revenue miles, deadhead hours, deadhead miles, and other hours and miles (i.e. training, 

recovery/layover time)? 

A: ECCTA has provided this information on its website and on Bid Express in response to this 

question. 

108. Can ECCTA provide the current Line Summary, Block Schedules, Driver Paddlers and 

Runcuts for the current services, in Excel format if available? 

A: ECCTA has provided this information on its website and on Bid Express in response to this 

question. 

109. Can ECCTA confirm if the annual vehicle service hours provided in section 5 are inclusive 

of deadhead hours? 

A: Confirmed. 

110. Can ECCTA please provide the latest benefit plan cost for the Teamsters Managed Health 

Care Trust Fund (TMHCTF) M20, Vision and Life Plans? 

A: ECCTA does not have this information. 

111.  On the NTD report, ECCTA reports a service mode DR. Can ECCTA indicate what are 

the service modes they include in this line? Is it paratransit and NEMT? Does it include 

microtransit as well? 

A: DR or Demand Response data reported to NTD includes: paratransit, NEMT, microtransit, and 

Mobility on Demand (MOD).  MOD is a partnership with Uber, Lyft, and a local taxicab company 

and it’s outside the scope of this contract. 

112. The RFP mentions the contractor will propose use of an advance dash camera/driver 

monitoring system. Can ECCTA please confirm if this applies to non-revenue vehicles as well? 

A: Yes. It applies to non-revenue vehicles operated by contractor employees. 
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113. If transitioning to a new contractor, would ECCTA consider a 6-month grace period on the 

incentive and penalty program to give the new management time to implement their 

management style and change from the existing behavior? 

A: Yes. 

114. Can ECCTA provide the last 12 months of monthly reporting by the current contractor, 

including: 

• Invoice summary 

• General Manage Report 

• Safety Manager Report 

• Fixed Fee report 

• Fixed Route/Demand Response deadhead hours 

• Revenue hours 

• Extra Service 

• Very Late trips 

• Staffing level report and list 

• Accidents/incidents summary report 

A: ECCTA has provided this information in answers to various other questions in this addendum. 

115. Can ECCTA provide the monthly cash farebox collection for the prior 12 months? 

A: See question 66. 

116. Can ECCTA provide the last 12 months of the employee retention rate reporting from the 

current contractor? 

A: ECCTA does not have access to this information. 

117. Can ECCTA provide the last 24 months of incidents and accidents from TransTrack? 

A: ECCTA has provided this information on its website and on Bid Express in response to this 

question. 

118. Can ECCTA confirm any monthly charges for vehicle Wi-Fi are paid by ECCTA? If not, 

can ECCTA provide the last 12 months of Wi-Fi costs? 

A: Confirmed. 

119. Can ECCTA please confirm the duration of the start-up period. Will there be office space 

available to the incoming contractor for start-up activities along with vehicles for training 

purposes? 

A: ECCTA anticipates a start-up period sufficient to allow for staffing, training, and operational 

readiness, with the exact duration to be finalized during contract negotiations. Office space will be 

made available to the incoming contractor for start-up activities, and a limited number of vehicles will 

be provided to support training and familiarization prior to the commencement of revenue service. 
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120. Can ECCTA please provide 3 years of historical penalties/liquidated damages to the 

current contractor? 

A: The liquidated damages provision became effective in December 2023. Consequently, information 

is available only from that point onward. 

121. Can ECCTA provide the estimated monthly cost of the LanguageLine service available for 

the contractor’s use? 

A: The average monthly cost over a 24-month period, ranging from October 2023 through September 

2025, was $776.93. The LanguageLine service charges on a per-minute basis, so the total amount per 

month charged to the contractor will vary depending on the translation needs of the call(s) received. 

122. The alternative price is for a + or – 20% deviation in the vehicle service hours. Would 

ECCTA consider changing the 20% deviation to a 10% deviation, as 20% is a large variation? 

A: ECCTA agrees to the request and will revise the allowable deviation in vehicle service hours from 

±20% to ±10%. This change will be reflected in this addendum and a revised Price Proposal Form 

will be provided. 

123. There is only one input for the alternative price and the RFP is looking for a price for a +/- 

20%; should there be an input for an alternative price option if service hours are greater or 

lesser than the base? 

A: See question 122. 

124. Is there a reason why the annual vehicle service hours listed in the RFP are estimated to 

decline year over year? What hours should be used for the option years? 

A: The daily vehicle service hours (service levels) remain constant throughout the base term. 

Variations in annual vehicle service hours are solely due to differences in the number of weekdays, 

Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays each year. Contractors should assume that service levels will 

remain unchanged for any option years. 

125. In an effort to provide the most accurate pricing to ECCTA and keeping the current 

employees whole regarding pay and benefits, can ECCTA provide the current list of employees 

the current contractor has under this contract, to include date of hire, wage and benefits? 

A: The information is included with this addendum. 

126. Can ECCTA provide the number of annual hours provided for supplemental service and 

bus bridges? 

A: Bus bridge requests have been rare in recent years. Furthermore, bus bridge service is only 

provided when sufficient resources—such as buses and operators—are available. 

127. On the organizational chart provided in ECCTA’s PTASP, there are five roles listed, 

including the Contract GM. Can ECCTA confirm that all other roles listed are ECCTA staff? 
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A: Confirmed. 

128. Can ECCTA specify if the NEMT services are currently performed by the incumbent or if 

they are subcontracted out? If subcontracted out, can ECCTA provide the subcontractor used? 

A: NEMT service is performed by current contractor employees. 

129. Can ECCTA provide the current CBA, or any MOU that may address pay or benefits, since 

the CBA provided in the RFP expired in July 2025? 

A: Negotiations are still in progress at the time of this communication. To prevent disparities in 

pricing due to key unknown variables, ECCTA requests that contractors assume an annual 4% wage 

increase over the next four years for all employees currently represented by the Teamsters. 

130. Can ECCTA provide an estimate for the number of miles per year that revenue vehicles 

and support vehicles for use by the contractor are driven for ECCTA employees (i.e. during 

maintenance and cleaning activities)? 

A: ECCTA has provided this information on its website and on Bid Express in response to this 

question. 

131. Will ECCTA accept a corporate board resolution authorizing the individual signing the 

proposal in lieu of a Power of Attorney? 

A: Yes. 

132. Please confirm that ECCTA is only requiring the resume and naming of the General 

Manager, as noted in Addendum 1. RFP page 12 indicates submittal for all resumes of “key 

personnel” listed as General Manager, Assistant General Manager, Safety Manager and 

Training Manager. 

A: ECCTA confirms that, as noted in Addendum 1, only the resume and identification of the General 

Manager are required at this time.  

133. Please confirm that ECCTA will be responsible for Environmental Compliance as it relates 

to hazardous materials relating to the maintenance of the fleet and associated materials used in 

that process and that ECCTA will indemnify the contractor accordingly. 

A: ECCTA will be responsible for Environmental Compliance as it pertains to hazardous materials 

associated with the maintenance of the fleet and any materials used in that process, and ECCTA will 

indemnify the contractor accordingly. 

134. Since most KPIs are evaluated on a monthly basis, will ECCTA consider adjusting the 

opportunity to cure to be a minimum of 30 days? 

A: ECCTA will allow the contractor a minimum of 10 business days in which to cure the defect, with 

the actual amount provided dependent on the circumstances, at ECCTA’s sole discretion. 



   

 

21 
 

135. Please clarify how bidders should submit the requested “Alternative” rates reflecting the 

scenarios involving a 20% greater increase or 20% or greater decrease in vehicle service hours. 

Will ECCTA provide a pricing form to submit these rates with the price proposal form? 

A: See question 122. 

136. Please confirm the Billable Hour Definition for Paratransit Services has changed and now 

includes a clause to deduct “any non-productive breaks exceeding 30 minutes” from billable 

time. 

A: Confirmed. 

137. Please clarify if the excluded billable time described as “any non-productive breaks 

exceeding 30 minutes” would include normal gaps in the schedule where an operator is 

traveling between trips and is intended to reduce billable revenue by actual ‘slack’ gaps in the 

schedule where an operator is idle. 

A: That is correct. 

138. Please confirm the submitted ‘estimated year pricing’ will be negotiated and finalized by 

mutual agreement. 

A: Please see the revised Price Proposal form. Select proposers may be offered the chance to present 

a Best and Final Offer prior to contract award. Contract pricing adjustments will be allowed in 

accordance with the contract. 

139. Please confirm the option rates submitted are ‘estimates’ and are open for negotiation at the 

time of option year execution. 

A: Please see the revised Price Proposal form. Contract pricing adjustments for option year execution 

will be allowed in accordance with the contract. ECCTA does not intend to treat option year 

execution as sole source procurements. 

140. Please provide an updated Faithful Performance Bond form with the required $1,000,000 

bond values listed, as the current bond form notes a bond for 100% of the contract amount. 

A: A revised form is included with this addendum. 

141. Please confirm that the contractor receives NEMT trip requests by ECCTA staff. 

Additionally, please confirm the contractor is not required to perform any pre-trip eligibility 

verification or any NEMT billing. 

A: Yes, that is correct. 
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